University of Central Florida

STARS

Text Materials of Central Florida

Central Florida Memory

1-1-1946

Freshman Guide, 1946-1947

Mummies and Zeniths Club, Bethune-Cookman University

Find similar works at: https://stars.library.ucf.edu/cfm-texts University of Central Florida Libraries http://library.ucf.edu

This Catalog is brought to you for free and open access by the Central Florida Memory at STARS. It has been accepted for inclusion in Text Materials of Central Florida by an authorized administrator of STARS. For more information, please contact STARS@ucf.edu.

Recommended Citation

Mummies and Zeniths Club, Bethune-Cookman University, "Freshman Guide, 1946-1947" (1946). *Text Materials of Central Florida*. 213.

https://stars.library.ucf.edu/cfm-texts/213

LIBRARY copy

FRESHMAN

GUIDE



1946-1947

Bethune - Cookman College

Daytona Beach, Florida

ARCHIVES

CONTENTS

Greetings from Mummies-Zeniths 1
The College Program 2
Registration Procedure for Freshmen & New Students 2
Registration Advisors4
Library Regulations5
Dining Hall Regulations 6
College Shibboleth 7
Regulations Governing Student Activities 8
FRESHMAN WEEK PROGRAM 8-11
General Information11
White Hall Offices and Class Rooms 13
COLLEGE HYMN AND COLLEGE SONG 14

GREETINGS FROM PRESIDENTS OF THE MUMMIES - ZENITHS CLUBS

As Presidents of the Mummies - Zeniths Club, we wish to welcome and bring greetings and felicitation; from our fellowclub members to the incoming Freshmen.

We want you to love our College as we do—holding highest always its ideals. As members of the Mummies - Zeniths Clubs, we like to feel that not only a worthy fel claim membership with us and aspire to live upon the summit of life as it is lived here at Bethune-Cookman College, but all young people should be imbeded with this spirit.

To those of you wha may not know about the Munmies-Zeniths Clubs; the clubs were organized at Bethune-Cookman College, by a group of young people who desired to promote brotherly and sisterly love and cultural conduct on the campus.

The name Zenith was chosen because it symbolizes the culminating point of prosperity, the highest peak of all celestial striving, and the utmost goal of human yearning.

THE FUNDAMENTAL AIMS ARE:

- 1—To promote higher scholarship, not only among its members, but among all of the students who inhabit the campus.
- 2—To raise the social standard of the campus and to encourage young peoples' natural desire for harmony in dress.
- 3—To foster this desire for natural harmony in accordance with their personality and their financial status,
- 4—To keep students ever mindful of honest, clean and spiritual living.

SINCERITY, rather than PRETENSE is summed up in our motto—"TO BE RATHER THAN TO SEEM." May your stay on the campus for the academic year 1946-1947 be a pleasant one, and we assure you that the members o four clubs stand ever ready to be of service to you in becoming adjusted to our campus life.

> MABLE ISAAC, President Zeniths Club GRADY JAMES, President Mummies Club

THE PROGRAM

I The program is designed to translate in a concrete and tangible manner the purpose of the College into a way of life and living. That purpose is to help the student to develop an integrated personality, to build his life roundedly andsymmetrically.

Education in its broadest sense, the production of useful changes, is the objective around which every function of the College is organized. Development of the student according to his individual capabilities is, therefore, the guiding motive. To achieve this objective the College has formulated and works within the following departments.

Teacher Training Department Vocational Training Department Secondary Education Department Business Administration Home Economics

REGISTRATION PROCEDURE

for Freshmen and New Students

Registration will be held Saturday, September 14, 1946, in Harrison Rhodes Memorial Library and White

1946, in Harrison Rhodes Memorial Library and White Hall. The procedure is as follows:

Step 1—(a) Students who know they want to take Business Administration will go to room 4, White Hall, where one of the listed Business Administration Advisors will assist in making out the

^{1.} Catalog, pages 15-17,.

- schedule and will sign each card in the registration book.
- (b) Students who know they want to take Home Economics will go to the Foods Laboratory, White Hall, where the Home Economics Advisors will assist in making out the schedule and will sign each card in the registration book,
- (c) Students who know they are interested in Elementary Education will seek out one of the listed Elementary Education Advisors in the Library for assistance.
- (d) Students interested in Secondary Education will obtain assistance in the development of their program from one of the listed Advisors in those areas.
- (e) Students interested in Vocational Courses will go to the Vocational Shop,
- Step 2-Go to the Office of the Dean where your book will be checked and approved by the Dean.
- Step 3—Go to the infirmary to submit your Physical examination record or to take a physical examination.
- Step 4—Go to the Business Office for payment of fees. Registration book must be stamped here.
- Step 5—Return to the Office of the Dean for final registration.

ADVISORS

Advisors for Freshmen:

- 1 Rev. Lester V. Baker 8 Mrs. Florence L. Dyett
- 2 Miss Martha M. Berhel 9 Miss Edwia M. Graham
- 3 Mrs. Johnnie R. Clark 10 Mrs. Larzette G. Hale
- 4 Mr. John W. Rembert, Jr. 11 Mrs. Alzeda C. Hacker
- 5 Miss Robbie L. Boyd 12 Mr. Henry J. Jackson
- 6 Mrs. Eugenia D. Christian 13 Miss Ellise Regulus
- 7 Miss Charlotte L. Ford 14 Miss Marion M. Speight

Registration Advisors:

I-Business Administration

1 Mrs. Larzette G. Hale

II-Elementary and Secondary Education

- 1 Miss Martha M. Berhel
- 2. Lillian F. Bryant

3 Mrs. Florence L. Dyett

III-Secondary and Vocational Education

Languages-

Miss Marion M. Speigt Miss Cleo M. Surry

Home Economics-

1 Miss Robbie L. Boyd

Miss Robbie L. Boyd

Music-

- 1 Mrs. Alzeda C. Hacker
- 2 Miss Edwia M. Graham

Science and Mathematics-

- 1 Mrs. Eugenia D. Christian
- 2 Miss Ellise Regulus

3 Mr. Henry J. Jackson

Social Science-

- 1 Mr. Lester V. Baker
- 2 Mr. John W. Rembert, Jr.

3 Mrs. Johnnie Ruth Clark

Vocational Training— — Secondary Education—

Alvis Lee

REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE USE OF HARRISON RHODES MEMORIAL LIBRARY

LIBRARY HOURS

8:45 A. M. - 12:30; 1:30 P. M. - 4:45 P. M. 7:30 P. M. - 9:30 P. M.

Saturdays 8:45 P. M. - 12:30 P. M. Closed All Day Sunday

ESGULATIONS

1. Of first importance in a library is the matter of proper decorum. Considerate silence is requested of all persons using the library. When you are entering or leaving the reading rooms kindly do so in the quitest way possible. There are always fellow students about you who are studying and would appreciate a "minimum of clatter."

 The Library is not the place for conversation. A conference room is available for the use of students whose instructors have made group assignments. Permission for use of the conference room is ob-

tainable from the Librarian.

 Reserved books are to be used in the Reserve readin room. Reserve books may be carried out at 9:30 P. M. for over-niht use and are due the following morning at 8:55 A. M. No book is to be carried from the library without being properly charged.

 Books in the Reference Room are on open shelves readily accessible to you. They are to be used in the Reference Room at all times, and each book should b returned to its proper place on the shelf,

before the user leaves the room.

5. Books in th Negro Collection and Fiction Books are housed in the Reading Laboratory just at the rear of the main library. Fiction books may be borrowed at the circulation desk for a period of two weeks with the privilege of renewal if the book has not been requested.

6. Special stack permits allowing entrance to the stacks are available to certain upperclassmen who may have a definite need for such a privilege. These permits are issued by the Librarian who reserves the right to withdraw the permit if such privilege is

abused.

- The use of periodical indexes will save you much time by directing you to information found in periodicals.
- 8. The card catalog is an index to the library, books arranged by author, title, and subject, alphabetically. On the upper left hand corner o fthe catalog card you will find the Dewey decimal call number.
- 9. A fine of twenty-five cents is charged for the first hour, or fraction of an hour, that a reserved book is kept overdue, and five cents for each additional or fraction of an hour. Two cents per day is charged for all overdue books drawn for two weeks.
- Familiarize yourselves with the library rules and keep them. It is necessary to do this, in order to protect the rights of all borrowers as well as the library.
- Please do not hesitate to ask for assistance when you need it.

WE WELCOME YOU TO THE RESOURCES OF OUR LIBRARY.

DINING HALL REGULATIONS

- Each student is admitted into the dining room with his meal ticket.
- 2. The dining hall has two entrances, the campus entrance which is used only by young women and the street entrance which is used by the young men. Any student using the wrong entrance will be asked to leave the dining hall and use the right one.
- The doors of the dining hall will be locked fifteen minutes after the last bell. We urge you to come to your meals on time.
- Before each meal students repeat in unison the following words:

Christ is the Head of this House, the unseen Guest at every meal and the Silent Listener at every conversation.

After these words the grace is sung:

MORNING GRACE

Come with the Morning hour
Come let us kneel and pray
Prayer is the Christian's pilgrim staff
To walk with God all day A... men

NOON GRACE

Be present at our table Lord
Be here and every where adored
With food divine, may we be fed
And satisfied with living bread, A... men

EVENING GRACE

If I have wounded any soul today
If I have caused one foot to go astray
If I have walked in my own wilful way
Dear Lord forgive.

A... men

THE COLLEGE SHIBOLETH

Leaning On The Everlasting Arms

What a fellowship, what a joy divine, Leaning on the everlasting arms; What a blessedness, what a peace is mine, Leaning on the everlasting arms.

Oh, how sweet to walk in this pilgrim way, Leaning on the everlasting arms; Oh, how briht the path grows from day to day, Leaning on the everlasting arms.

What have I to dread, what have I to fear, Leaning on the everlasting arms; I have blessed peace with my Lord so near, Leaning on the everlasting arms. CHORUS

Leaning, leaning, Safe and secure from all alarms; Leaning, leaning, leaning on the everlasting arms.

E. A. Hoffman A. J. Showalter

SOME OF THE REGULATIONS GOVERNING STUDENT ACTIVITIES

 Students participate with the faculty members in a reasonable number of College procedures,

 Students are asked to leave the College when they find it impossible to adjust themselves and cooperate.

*3. All candidates for graduation, except those who live in Daytona Beach with their parents or guardians, must reside on the campus their senior year. Uniform dress is believed to be most economical, and a means of training young people in habits of simplicity and good taste in dress. Therefore, on certain occasions students must wear uniform dress.

 Consult your dormitory director about your social privileges, such as permissions for visiting friends in the city, shopping permission, movie permissions and any other activities of this nature.

FRESHMAN WEEK PROGRAM

(September 11 - 14, 1946)

	Wednesday, September 11 Dormitories open, Arrival of Freshmen
Woman	Curtis Hall
	Cookman Hall
	Dinner
1.10	(Faith Hall)
	Dormitory Adjustment
5:00	Supper
3.00	(Faith Hall)
7:00	
	(Ritz Theater)
	Thursday, September 12
3.00	Breakfast
	12:00 English Test
#No. 9	(a) Mechanics of expression (b) Effectiveness of expression (c) Reading comprehension (Science Hall - rooms 3, 5 and 7) In catalog, page 35
19.95	General Assembly
40.00	(Auditorium - White Hall)
1-15	(Additional - White Han) Dinner
A.AU	(Faith Hall)
2.00	
	Ball, Badminnton, Croquet, Tennis and Horse-
	hoe (Campus)
6.00	Supper
0.00	(Faith Hall)
6+20	Pilgrimage to Oak Street Site
8:30	Party
	(Auditorium - White Hall) Sponsored by Y. W. C. A.

Friday, September 13

8:00		Breakfast
8c 50 - 10:00	(Faith Hall)	Assembly
STATE OF THE REAL PROPERTY.	(Auditorium - White Hall)	24000111019

PLANNED PROGRAM
Comments Dean For
Comments Business Manage
Greetings from Alumni Association
Welcome from Upperclassmen
Welcome from Community
Welcome on behalf of College
Representative from Administrative Councillor Traditions of the College
10:30 - 11:30 Psychological Te
American Council of Education
(Science Hall - rooms 3, 5 and 7)
1:15 Dinne
(Faith Hall)
3:00 Ope
4:00 - 5:00 Dormitory "get-together
Curtis Hal - Dean of Women
Cookman Hall - Dean of Men
5:00 Meet Freshmen Advisor
6:00 Suppo
(Faith Hall) 8:00 Reception for Freshmen - Auditoriu
8:00 Reception for Freshmen - Auditoriu
Saturday, September 14
8:00 Breakfa
8:45 Assembly for Upperclassme Explanation of Registration
10:00 - 11:40 Contemporary Affairs Tes
(Science Hall - rooms 3, 5 and 7)
12:0 Dinne
(Faith Hall)
2:00 Shopping period an
7:30 Talent Night
(Auditorium)
Sunday, September 15
8:30 Breakfa
A

9:30 - 10:30Sunday School
(Auditorium - White Hall)
1:00 Dinner (Faith Hall)
5:00 Musicale
(Auditorium)
Monday, September 16
8:00 Breakfast
(Faith Hall)
9:00 - 1:00
White Hall and Harrison Rhodes Memorial Library
1:15 Dinner
(Faith Hall)
2:00 Freshman Picture
(In Front of Library)
2:00 - 5:30 Registrtion Concluded
6:00 Supper
(Faith Hall)
Tuesday, September 17
8:00 Breakfast
(Faith Hall)
9:00 All Classes Begin
9:00 - 12:00 Final Tests for all Freshmen and New Students

(a) General Achievement Test

(b) American History (Auditorium)

Note - Watch your bulletin boards in White Hall,

Science Hll and Dosmitories for changes in activities. Keep your College catalog and guide with you until you are familiar with all of the College activities.

Physical Examinations to be arranged by College Physician,

GENERAL INFORMATION

 All students, boarding and city, will report, men and women, respectively, to the Directors of Cookman and Curtis Hall presenting there your admission cards. In the event you do not-have an admission card, you should report immediately to the Dean's Office, White Hall, second floor.

- Report to the Business office, presenting admission card, and pay Freshman Week Fee, \$1.00. At this time, boarding students will also py the \$0.50 kep deposit fee. Keep these receipts with you. Thy will be your admission ticket to all tests.
- Having paid your Freshman Week Fee, report again to the dormitories for room assignments.
- 4. The testing program is set up for your benefit, in order that instructors may come to know you better and thus instruct you better. DO NOT FEAR these tests. They have no bearing on your classification. Come to the tests equipped with a supply of sharp pencils, You will not need to bring paper. REPORT TO ALL TESTS and to ALL ACTIVITIES on TIME. This refers to all students, city and boarding. No student will register until he has taken all the tests.
- On Wednesday, September 11, all students who are to receive Industrial Aid must report to the Business Office, White Hall, first floor, Business Manager, to receive their work assignment card.
- Students are reminded that official permission in writing must be secured before they will be allowed to live in the city with persons other than father or mother.
- For further information regarding any items in this book or on any subject in which you have doubts, see your catalog, then if you are still at a loss, seek your dormitory director, dvisor or Dean of the College.
- All students are permitted to shop in town. FRESH-MEN Women must be accompanied by an Older student, or faculty person, and must go in groups of two or more.
- Freshmen Girls shop on Tuesday. Freshmen girls may also shop on Sturday, if necessary, with permission from the Matron.
 - (a) Students should return to the campus by 5:30 P. M. for the supper period.
 - (b) The route to town:

Campbell Street to Volusia Avenue, and return the same way. Students may ride the Bus if they so desire.

 Students are not permitted to ride in automobiles, except with the special permission of the Dean of Women. 11. Sunday Social Hours-All Students:

Curtis Hall Lawn and Qudrangle-5:00 - 6:30.

(b) Watch Bulletin board for Social Hour in Dormitory.

 All students are expected to attend all Chapel exercises unless specifically excused.

- Students are expected to be in their respective dormitories after 6:30, unless they have properly signed out in register provided for same in their dormitories.
- All students are to be in their dormitories at 9:45 P. M.
- DO NOT MISS your physical examinations; they are very important,



THE FOLLOWING OFFICES and CLASS ROOMS ARE LOCATED IN WHITE HALL

First Floor

- 1. Post Office.
- 2. Business Office and Bookstore
- 3. Office of Business Manager
- 4. Sewing Laboratory
- Office of Mrs. Bertha L. Mitchell, Secretary-Treasurer
- 6. Office of Promotion Secretary
- 7. Office of Secretary to President
- 8. President's Office
- 9. Foods Laboratory
- 10. Women's Lavatory
- 11. Supply Closet
- 12. Auditorium

Second Floor

- 1. & 2. Dean's Offices
- 3. & 4. Business Administration
 - 5. Office of Public Relations
 - 6. Offices of Social Science and Education
 - 7. Classroom
 - 8. Classroom
 - 9. Closet
 - 9. Closet
 - 10. Men's Lavatory
 - 11. Projection room

THE COLLEGE HYMN

Dear Alma Mater, thou Beloved,
We pledge our lives to thee;
Thou art results of toil and pain
And tears came in a stream;
Dear Alma Mater, thou art all and all the world to me
Thou'rt the answered prayer of a dream.

Oh God to protect dear B.-C. C. Crown her with love and cheer, We'll ever sing thy praise to thee It makes us strong and bold,

All hail to thee, dear B.-C. C. All hail to thee, all hail Hail thee: Maroon and Gold.

P. R. Roberts

COLLEGE SONG

-:0:---

-1-

Gladly we ather thy praises to sing Loudly and clearly our voices shall ring; Truly rejoicing our Dear B.-C. C. Thy name forever in honor shall be.

-2-

Years may divide us, tho' far we may roam Our thoughts shall turn to our beautiful home Loving and serving where e'er we may be, Our lives shall prove our devotion to thee.

CHORUS

Oh, B.-C. C. so dear and so true
Thy praise we're singing, our love bring to you
God bless and keep us e'er falthful and true;
Loyal forever, B.-C. C. to you.

Frances R. Keyser Josie Roberts

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

-:-

Faculty Members and Freshman Committee

Lester V. Baker Martha M. Berhel Sadie J. McAllister Marion M. Speight Eugenia Dunn Christian, Chr.

-:0:-

COMPLIMENTS

of

MUMMIES and ZENITHS CLUB

2533128

LIBRARY copy

FRESHMAN

GUIDE



1946-1947

Bethune - Cookman College

Daytona Beach, Florida

ARCHIVES

CONTENTS

Greetings from Mummies-Zeniths 1
The College Program 2
Registration Procedure for Freshmen & New Students 2
Registration Advisors4
Library Regulations 5
Dining Hall Regulations 6
College Shibboleth 7
Regulations Governing Student Activities 8
FRESHMAN WEEK PROGRAM 8-11
General Information11
White Hall Offices and Class Rooms 13
COLLEGE HYMN AND COLLEGE SONG14

GREETINGS FROM PRESIDENTS OF THE MUMMIES - ZENITHS CLUBS

As Presidents of the Mummies - Zeniths Club, we wish to welcome and bring greetings and felicitation; from our fellowclub members to the incoming Freshmen.

We want you to love our College as we do—holding highest always its ideals. As members of the Mummies - Zeniths Clubs, we like to feel that not only a worthy fel claim membership with us and aspire to live upon the summit of life as it is lived here at Bethune-Cookman College, but all young people should be imbeded with this spirit.

To those of you wha may not know about the Mummies-Zeniths Clubs; the clubs were organized at Bethune-Cookman College, by a group of young people who desired to promote brotherly and sisterly love and cultural conduct on the campus.

The name Zenith was chosen because it symbolizes the culminating point of prosperity, the highest peak of all celestial striving, and the utmost goal of human yearning.

THE FUNDAMENTAL AIMS ARE:

- 1—To promote higher scholarship, not only among its members, but among all of the students who inhabit the campus.
- 2—To raise the social standard of the campus and to encourage young peoples' natural desire for harmony in dress.
- 3—To foster this desire for natural harmony in accordance with their personality and their financial status,
- 4—To keep students ever mindful of honest, clean and spiritual living.

SINCERITY, rather than PRETENSE is summed up in our motto—"TO BE RATHER THAN TO SEEM." May your stay on the campus for the academic year 1946-1947 be a pleasant one, and we assure you that the members o four clubs stand ever ready to be of service to you in becoming adjusted to our campus life.

> MABLE ISAAC, President Zeniths Club GRADY JAMES, President Mummies Club

THE PROGRAM

I The program is designed to translate in a concrete and tangible manner the purpose of the College into a way of life and living. That purpose is to help the student to develop an integrated personality, to build his life roundedly andsymmetrically.

Education in its broadest sense, the production of useful changes, is the objective around which every function of the College is organized. Development of the student according to his individual capabilities is, therefore, the guiding motive. To achieve this objective the College has formulated and works within the following departments.

Teacher Training Department Vocational Training Department Secondary Education Department Business Administration Home Economics

REGISTRATION PROCEDURE

for Freshmen and New Students

Registration will be held Saturday, September 14, 1946, in Harrison Rhodes Memorial Library and White

1946, in Harrison Rhodes Memorial Library and White Hall. The procedure is as follows:

Step 1—(a) Students who know they want to take Business Administration will go to room 4, White Hall, where one of the listed Business Administration Advisors will assist in making out the

^{1.} Catalog, pages 15-17,.

- schedule and will sign each card in the registration book.
- (b) Students who know they want to take Home Economics will go to the Foods Laboratory, White Hall, where the Home Economics Advisors will assist in making out the schedule and will sign each card in the registration book,
- (c) Students who know they are interested in Elementary Education will seek out one of the listed Elementary Education Advisors in the Library for assistance.
- (d) Students interested in Secondary Education will obtain assistance in the development of their program from one of the listed Advisors in those areas.
- (e) Students interested in Vocational Courses will go to the Vocational Shop,
- Step 2-Go to the Office of the Dean where your book will be checked and approved by the Dean.
- Step 3—Go to the infirmary to submit your Physical examination record or to take a physical examination.
- Step 4—Go to the Business Office for payment of fees. Registration book must be stamped here.
- Step 5—Return to the Office of the Dean for final registration.

ADVISORS

Advisors for Freshmen:

- 1 Rev. Lester V. Baker 8 Mrs. Florence L. Dyett
- 2 Miss Martha M. Berhel 9 Miss Edwia M. Graham
- 3 Mrs. Johnnie R. Clark 10 Mrs. Larzette G. Hale
- 4 Mr. John W. Rembert, Jr. 11 Mrs. Alzeda C. Hacker
- 5 Miss Robbie L. Boyd 12 Mr. Henry J. Jackson
- 6 Mrs. Eugenia D. Christian 13 Miss Ellise Regulus
- 7 Miss Charlotte L. Ford 14 Miss Marion M. Speight

Registration Advisors:

I-Business Administration

1 Mrs. Larzette G. Hale II—Elementary and Secondary Education

- 1 Miss Martha M. Berhel
- 2. Lillian F. Bryant

3 Mrs. Florence L. Dyett

III-Secondary and Vocational Education

Languages-

Miss Marion M. Speigt Miss Cleo M. Surry

Home Economics-

1 Miss Robbie L. Boyd Miss Robbie L. Boyd

Music-

- 1 Mrs. Alzeda C. Hacker
- 2 Miss Edwia M. Graham

Science and Mathematics-

- 1 Mrs. Eugenia D. Christian
- 2 Miss Ellise Regulus

3 Mr. Henry J. Jackson

Social Science-

- 1 Mr. Lester V. Baker
- 2 Mr. John W. Rembert, Jr.

3 Mrs. Johnnie Ruth Clark

Vocational Training— — Secondary Education—

Alvis Lee

REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE USE OF HARRISON RHODES MEMORIAL LIBRARY

LIBRARY HOURS

8:45 A. M. - 12:30; 1:30 P. M. - 4:45 P. M. 7:30 P. M. - 9:30 P. M.

Saturdays 8:45 P. M. - 12:30 P. M. Closed All Day Sunday

ESGULATIONS

- 1. Of first importance in a library is the matter of proper decorum. Considerate silence is requested of all persons using the library. When you are entering or leaving the reading rooms kindly do so in the quitest way possible. There are always fellow students about you who are studying and would appreciate a "minimum of clatter."
- The Library is not the place for conversation. A conference room is available for the use of students whose instructors have made group assignments. Permission for use of the conference room is obtainable from the Librarian.
- Reserved books are to be used in the Reserve readin room. Reserve books may be carried out at 9:30 P. M. for over-niht use and are due the following morning at 8:55 A. M. No book is to be carried from the library without being properly charged.
- 4. Books in the Reference Room are on open shelves readily accessible to you. They are to be used in the Reference Room at all times, and each book should b returned to its proper place on the shelf, before the user leaves the room.
- 5. Books in th Negro Collection and Fiction Books are housed in the Reading Laboratory just at the rear of the main library. Fiction books may be borrowed at the circulation desk for a period of two weeks with the privilege of renewal if the book has not been requested.
- 6. Special stack permits allowing entrance to the stacks are available to certain upperclassmen who may have a definite need for such a privilege. These permits are issued by the Librarian who reserves the right to withdraw the permit if such privilege is abused.

- The use of periodical indexes will save you much time by directing you to information found in periodicals.
- 8. The card catalog is an index to the library, books arranged by author, title, and subject, alphabetically. On the upper left hand corner o fthe catalog card you will find the Dewey decimal call number.
- 9. A fine of twenty-five cents is charged for the first hour, or fraction of an hour, that a reserved book is kept overdue, and five cents for each additional or fraction of an hour. Two cents per day is charged for all overdue books drawn for two weeks.
- Familiarize yourselves with the library rules and keep them. It is necessary to do this, in order to protect the rights of all borrowers as well as the library.
- Please do not hesitate to ask for assistance when you need it.

WE WELCOME YOU TO THE RESOURCES OF OUR LIBRARY.

DINING HALL REGULATIONS

- Each student is admitted into the dining room with his meal ticket.
- 2. The dining hall has two entrances, the campus entrance which is used only by young women and the street entrance which is used by the young men. Any student using the wrong entrance will be asked to leave the dining hall and use the right one.
- The doors of the dining hall will be locked fifteen minutes after the last bell. We urge you to come to your meals on time.
- Before each meal students repeat in unison the following words:

Christ is the Head of this House, the unseen Guest at every meal and the Silent Listener at every conversation.

After these words the grace is sung:

MORNING GRACE

Come with the Morning hour
Come let us kneel and pray
Prayer is the Christian's pilgrim staff
To walk with God all day A... men

NOON GRACE

Be present at our table Lord
Be here and every where adored
With food divine, may we be fed
And satisfied with living bread, A... men

EVENING GRACE

If I have wounded any soul today
If I have caused one foot to go astray
If I have walked in my own wilful way
Dear Lord forgive.

A . . . men

THE COLLEGE SHIBOLETH

Leaning On The Everlasting Arms

What a fellowship, what a joy divine, Leaning on the everlasting arms; What a blessedness, what a peace is mine, Leaning on the everlasting arms.

Oh, how sweet to walk in this pilgrim way, Leaning on the everlasting arms; Oh, how briht the path grows from day to day, Leaning on the everlasting arms.

What have I to dread, what have I to fear, Leaning on the everlasting arms; I have blessed peace with my Lord so near, Leaning on the everlasting arms. CHORUS

Leaning, leaning, Safe and secure from all alarms; Leaning, leaning, leaning on the everlasting arms.

E. A. Hoffman A. J. Showalter

SOME OF THE REGULATIONS GOVERNING STUDENT ACTIVITIES

 Students participate with the faculty members in a reasonable number of College procedures,

 Students are asked to leave the College when they find it impossible to adjust themselves and cooperate.

*3. All candidates for graduation, except those who live in Daytona Beach with their parents or guardians, must reside on the campus their senior year. Uniform dress is believed to be most economical, and a means of training young people in habits of simplicity and good taste in dress. Therefore, on certain occasions students must wear uniform dress.

 Consult your dormitory director about your social privileges, such as permissions for visiting friends in the city, shopping permission, movie permissions and any other activities of this nature.

FRESHMAN WEEK PROGRAM

(September 11 - 14, 1946)

	Wednesday, September 11 Dormitories open, Arrival of Freshmen
Women	Curtis Hall
	Dinner
	(Faith Hall) Dormitory Adjustment
5:00	Supper
	(Faith Hall)
1:00	(Ritz Theater) Theater Party
	Thursday, September 12
3:00	Breakfast
	12:00 English Test
#No. 9	(a) Mechanics of expression (b) Effectiveness of expression (c) Reading comprehension (Science Hall - rooms 3, 5 and 7) In catalog, page 35
19.95	General Assembly
10.00	(Auditorium - White Hall)
1:15	Dinner
	(Faith Hall)
3:00	
9	Ball, Badmimnton, Croquet, Tennis and Horse- hoe (Campus)
6:00	Supper
	(Faith Hall)
6:30	Pilgrimage to Oak Street Site
8:30	Party
	(Auditorium - White Hall) Sponsored by Y. W. C. A.

Friday, September 13

8:00		Breakfast
	(Faith Hall)	
8:50 - 10:00	(Auditorium White Holl)	Assembly

PLANNED PROGRAM
Comments Dean For
Comments Business Manage
Greetings from Alumni Association
Welcome from Upperclassmen
Welcome from Community
Welcome on behalf of College
Representative from Administrative Council Traditions of the College
10:30 - 11:30 Psychological Tes
American Council of Education
(Science Hall - rooms 3, 5 and 7)
1:15 Dinne
(Faith Hall)
3:00 Ope
4:00 - 5:00 Dormitory "get-together
Curtis Hal - Dean of Women
Cookman Hall - Dean of Men
5:00 Meet Freshmen Advisor
6:00 Suppe
8:00 Reception for Freshmen - Auditorium
Saturday, September 14
8:00 Breakfas
8:45 Assembly for Upperclassment Explanation of Registration
10:00 - 11:40 Contemporary Affairs Test
(Science Hall - rooms 3, 5 and 7)
12:0 Dinne
(Faith Hall)
2:00 Shopping period and
7:30 Talent Nigh
(Auditorium)
Sunday, September 15
8:30 Breakfas
0

9:30 - 10:30Sunday School
(Auditorium - White Hall)
1:00 Dinner (Faith Hall)
5:00 Musicale
(Auditorium)
Monday, September 16
8:00 Breakfast
(Faith Hall)
9:00 - 1:00
White Hall and Harrison Rhodes Memorial Library
1:15 Dinner
(Faith Hall)
2:00 Freshman Picture
(In Front of Library)
2:00 - 5:30 Registrtion Concluded
6:00 Supper
(Faith Hall)
Tuesday, September 17
8:00 Breakfast
(Faith Hall)
9:00 All Classes Begin
9:00 - 12:00 Final Tests for all Freshmen and New Students

(a) General Achievement Test

(b) American History (Auditorium)

Note - Watch your bulletin boards in White Hall,

Science Hll and Dosmitories for changes in activities. Keep your College catalog and guide with you until you are familiar with all of the College activities.

Physical Examinations to be arranged by College Physician,

GENERAL INFORMATION

 All students, boarding and city, will report, men and women, respectively, to the Directors of Cookman and Curtis Hall presenting there your admission cards. In the event you do not-have an admission card, you should report immediately to the Dean's Office, White Hall, second floor.

- Report to the Business office, presenting admission card, and pay Freshman Week Fee, \$1.00. At this time, boarding students will also py the \$0.50 kep deposit fee. Keep these receipts with you. Thy will be your admission ticket to all tests.
- Having paid your Freshman Week Fee, report again to the dormitories for room assignments.
- 4. The testing program is set up for your benefit, in order that instructors may come to know you better and thus instruct you better. DO NOT FEAR these tests. They have no bearing on your classification. Come to the tests equipped with a supply of sharp pencils, You will not need to bring paper. REPORT TO ALL TESTS and to ALL ACTIVITIES on TIME. This refers to all students, city and boarding. No student will register until he has taken all the tests.
- On Wednesday, September 11, all students who are to receive Industrial Aid must report to the Business Office, White Hall, first floor, Business Manager, to receive their work assignment card.
- Students are reminded that official permission in writing must be secured before they will be allowed to live in the city with persons other than father or mother.
- For further information regarding any items in this book or on any subject in which you have doubts, see your catalog, then if you are still at a loss, seek your dormitory director, dvisor or Dean of the College.
- All students are permitted to shop in town. FRESH-MEN Women must be accompanied by an Older student, or faculty person, and must go in groups of two or more.
- Freshmen Girls shop on Tuesday. Freshmen girls may also shop on Sturday, if necessary, with permission from the Matron.
 - (a) Students should return to the campus by 5:30 P. M. for the supper period.
 - (b) The route to town:

Campbell Street to Volusia Avenue, and return the same way. Students may ride the Bus if they so desire.

 Students are not permitted to ride in automobiles, except with the special permission of the Dean of Women. 11. Sunday Social Hours-All Students:

Curtis Hall Lawn and Qudrangle-5:00 - 6:30.

(b) Watch Bulletin board for Social Hour in Dormitory.

 All students are expected to attend all Chapel exercises unless specifically excused.

- Students are expected to be in their respective dormitories after 6:30, unless they have properly signed out in register provided for same in their dormitories.
- All students are to be in their dormitories at 9:45 P. M.
- DO NOT MISS your physical examinations; they are very important,



THE FOLLOWING OFFICES and CLASS ROOMS ARE LOCATED IN WHITE HALL

First Floor

- 1. Post Office.
- 2. Business Office and Bookstore
- 3. Office of Business Manager
- 4. Sewing Laboratory
- Office of Mrs. Bertha L. Mitchell, Secretary-Treasurer
- 6. Office of Promotion Secretary
- 7. Office of Secretary to President
- 8. President's Office
- 9. Foods Laboratory
- 10. Women's Lavatory
- 11. Supply Closet
- 12. Auditorium

Second Floor

- 1. & 2. Dean's Offices
- 3. & 4. Business Administration
 - 5. Office of Public Relations
 - 6. Offices of Social Science and Education
 - 7. Classroom
 - 8. Classroom
 - 9. Closet
 - 9. Closet
 - 10. Men's Lavatory
 - 11. Projection room

THE COLLEGE HYMN

Dear Alma Mater, thou Beloved,
We pledge our lives to thee;
Thou art results of toil and pain
And tears came in a stream;
Dear Alma Mater, thou art all and all the world to me
Thou'rt the answered prayer of a dream.

Oh God to protect dear B.-C. C. Crown her with love and cheer, We'll ever sing thy praise to thee It makes us strong and bold,

All hail to thee, dear B.-C. C. All hail to thee, all hail Hail thee: Maroon and Gold.

P. R. Roberts

COLLEGE SONG

-:0:---

-1-

Gladly we ather thy praises to sing Loudly and clearly our voices shall ring; Truly rejoicing our Dear B.-C. C. Thy name forever in honor shall be.

-2-

Years may divide us, tho' far we may roam Our thoughts shall turn to our beautiful home Loving and serving where e'er we may be, Our lives shall prove our devotion to thee.

CHORUS

Oh, B.-C. C. so dear and so true
Thy praise we're singing, our love bring to you
God bless and keep us e'er falthful and true;
Loyal forever, B.-C. C. to you.

Frances R. Keyser Josie Roberts

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

-:-

Faculty Members and Freshman Committee

Lester V. Baker Martha M. Berhel Sadie J. McAllister Marion M. Speight Eugenia Dunn Christian, Chr.

-:0:---

COMPLIMENTS

of

MUMMIES and ZENITHS CLUB

2533128